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Frank Edelblut

Commissioner

Christine Brennan

Deputy Commissioner

September 14, 2021

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

101 Pleasant Street

Concord, N.H. 03301
TEL. (603) 271-3495
FAX (603) 271-1953

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Education, Bureau of Vocational Rehabilitation (VR) to enter into a
contract with Granite State Independent Living (GSIL), of Concord, NH (Vendor Code 155330),
in an amount not to exceed $290,781, to provide Independent Living (IL), Part B services, effective
upon Governor and Council approval through September 30, 2023. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are available in FY 2022 and FY 2023, and anticipated to be available
in FY 2024 in the account titled Independent Services (Part B) upon the availability of continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the ability to adjust encumbrances
between fiscal years through the budget office without further Governor & Council approval if
needed and justified.

FY 2022

06-56-56-565010-25420000-102-500731

Contracts for Program Services

FY 2023 FY 2024

$109,042.75 $145,390.50 $36,347.75

EXPLANATION

The New Hampshire Department of Education receives an annual grant of $338,117 from the
United States Department of Health and Human Services, Administration of Community Living,
and Independent Living Administration. The grant under Title VI, Part B of the Rehabilitation
Act, as amended, enables the state to provide independent living services to individuals with
significant disabilities so they can become more independent in their homes and communities. The
Department provides services through contracts with nonprofit organizations which are directed
and managed primarily by persons with significant disabilities. The services provide under the
contract are available statewide. Services include: information and referral, peer advocacy,
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council
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Granite State Independent Living has a governing board that is controlled by persons with
disabilities and provides the core independent living services as the only Center for Independent
Living in the state. The purpose of GSIL is to promote life with independence for people with
disabilities who reside in the state, which makes them uniquely suited to provide services to
persons with disabilities.

A Request for Proposals (RFP) was advertised on the Department of Education website on 3/8/21
with a deadline for proposals of 4/26/21. There were five (5) proposals submitted to the Request
for Proposals "Independent Living, Part B" in response to the notice.

A review committee consisting of the Administrator for Blind Services, a Program Specialist, Field
Service Administrator and a VR Supervisor. The team reviewed the five (5) proposals received
by the deadline (Attachment A). Base on the review, the team recommended funding all 5
proposals, and Granite State Independent Living was selected to receive a contract in the amount
of $290,781. Each contract will be submitted to the Governor and Council as it is completed.

The outcome VR would like to achieve with this contract is to have independent living services
provided statewide so more individuals with significant disabilities can maintain residence in their
chosen locations within their communities.

If Federal Funds should become unavailable. General Funds will not be requested to support this
program.

Respectfully Submitted,

Frank Edelblut

Commissioner of Education
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Granite State Independent Living
Attachment A

Scoring for the Independent Living, Part B proposals:

Significance of Proposal: Description of applicant's abilities to meet or exceed the Purposes and
Priorities, Minimum Requirements and Services to be Provided, including a description of work
experience and educational background in Independent Living service provision. This will include a
review of the letter of interest, letters of recommendation and resumes.

Proposal Criteria
Statement of Need

Project Description
Sustainability
Organizational Capacity
Collaboration

Organization Budget

Total for Evaluation Criteria

Potential Score

10

20

20

15

15

20

100

Evaluation Criteria Scores (proposals above 60 will receive funding if appropriate)

Dan F. Lisa B. Scott V. Beth D. Average Score

B&F 100 96 98 97 97.75

FiS 89 91 89 95 91

BIANH 87 83 92 93 88.75

NDHHS 85 85 85 89 86

GSIL 70 73 80 76 74.75

BIANH=Brain Injury Association of New Hampshire, GSIL=Granite State Independent Living,
NDHHS=Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, FiS=Future In Sight, B & F= B & F Teaching
and Technology

Scoring for review occurred on May 5, 2021. The proposal review panel consisted of the following
employees from the Department of Education:

Reviewer Qualifications:

Dan F. has worked for the VR agency for 2 years and is the Administrator for Blind and Vision-Impaired.

Lisa B. has worked for the agency for six years and is a VR Supervisor. She has oversight of a local
office and assists in other activities as needed within the administration.

Scott V. has worked for the VR agency for over 20 years and has primary responsibility over blind
services operations.

Beth D. has worked for the agency for 29 years and oversees the agencies VR offices and supervisors for
the bureau.



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows;

GENERAL PROVISIONS

.1 IDENTIFICATION..-^

1  1.1 State Agency Name
Department of Education

' 1.2 State Agency Address
121 S. Fruit Street, Suite 20
Concord, NH 03301

1  1.3 Coritfactbr Nune
GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

1  1.4 Contractor Address
'21 Chenell Drive

' Concord, NH 03301
1

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-228-9680

1

1.6 ' Accoimt Number

Sec exhibit C
1

1.7 Completion Date

9/30/2023

.  .

'1.8 Price Limitation

$290,781

t

I  179 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1
1 Lisa Hinson-Hatz f

-  - . J

1 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
1603-419-0086
L  _

'Ml Contractor Signature |11.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
j Deborah Ritcey, Chief Executive Officer

'1.13 State Agency Signature J

!  "^11^\ ̂ 1
; 1.14 Name and Title of State AgencySignatory"*" "
Frank Edelblut, Commissioner

1 1.15 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)
1

1  By: Director, On:

',1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

1  By: Christopher Bond

1.17 Approval by the Govet^ and Executive Cbuhcil (ifapplicable) "

G&C Item number: ̂  G&C Meeting Date:
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New

Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block I.I
("State"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive

Council approve this Agreement as indicated In block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown In block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If die Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurr^ or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State thereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affect^ by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided In EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any othef
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the

event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms ofpayment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHlBll' C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The Slate shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.ll. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shell comply with all applicable statutes, laws,

regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws. /
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged In the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event

of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder. and/or
8!1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the rî t of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Coritractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising Its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
Conuacting Officer, not later than fifteen (1S) days after the date
of termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT 8. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and
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submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the

Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property'of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For pur^ses
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignmcht. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out of) the acts or omission of the

of4 ^
Contractor Initials,

Date ~



Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Conunctor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in' force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injuiy, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $ 1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, ccrtiflcate(s) of insurance
for ail rencwal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The certiflcatc(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Compensation").
15.2 To the extent the Conuactor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor .shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict

between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall In no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any ofthe provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of coimterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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EXHIBIT A

Additional Exhibits 0-0^,

Federal Certification 2 CFR 200.415

Required certifications include: (a) To assure that expenditures are proper and in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Federal award and approved project
budgets, the annual and final fiscal reports or vouchers requesting payment under the
agreements must include a certification, signed by an official who is authorized to legally
bind the non-Federal entity, which reads as follows:

By signing this report, I certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that the report is
true, complete, and accurate, and the expenditures, disbursements and cash receipts are for
the purposes and objectives set forth in the terms and conditions of the Federal award. I am
aware that any false, fictitious, or fraudulent information, or the omission of any material
fact, may subject me to criminal, civil or administrative penalties for fraud, false
statements, false claims or otherwise. (U.S. Code Title 18, Section 1001 and Title 31,
Sections 3729-3730 and 3801-3812).

All the terms and conditions applicable for the use of Federal funds, as outlined in the Office of
Management and Budget (0MB) Uniform Grant Guidance, shall be applied by the contractor to
any contract activities and expenses, and may be amended from time to time.

Confrocf befween GRANITE STATE tNDEPEN^NT LMNG ond the New Hampshire Department of Education
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EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

The Contractor, GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING (GSIL) shall provide independent
living (IL) services based on the Federal regulation 45 CFR Part 1329 per the Workforce
Iniiovation Opportunity Act (WIOA), upon Governor and Council approval, through September
30, 2023.

The scope of the work for GSIL shall include the contractor identifying individuals who may be
eligible for services, develop documentation in support of their eligibility and complete a plan to
utilize appropriate and necessary independent living "core" or traditional services.

According to the Administration on Community Living and Definitions in 45 CFR 1329.4
"Independent Living Core services (ILS or CIL) mean, for purposes of services that are supported
under ILS or CIL programs-

1) Information and referral services;
2) Independent Living skills training;
3) Peer counseling, including cross-disability peer counseling;
4) Individual and systems advocacy;
5) Services that:

i. Facilitate the transition of individuals with significant disabilities from
nursing homes and other institutions to home and community-based
residences, with the requisite supports and services."

ii. "Provide assistance to individuals with significant disabilities who are at risk
of entering institutions so that the individual may remain in the community."

iii. Facilitate the transition of youth who are individual's with significant
disabilities, who were eligible for individualized education programs under
IDEA.

GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING shallcE

1. Employ personnel who are specialists for the development and provision of independent
living services (IL) in accordance with 45 CFR 1329.

2. Provide information about IL services make referrals to other programs for individuals with
significant disabilities as required under 45 CFR 1329.

3. The Contractor shall obtain medical, psychological, psychiatric, educational, vocational,
social and financial information necessary to support eligibility for services.

4. The Contractor shall assist applicants in completion of any necessary forms and will develop
an Independent Living Plan (ILP) prior to service provision.

5. The Contractor shall coordinate services with other state and local programs to avoid
duplication of services.

6. The Contractor shall develop and maintain a consumer service record for each IL program
customer. Documentation shall include eligibility decisions signed and dated by the

Controcf between GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING and the New Hampshire Department of Education
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EXHIBIT B CONTINUED

Service Coordinator, services requested by the customer, the ILP, the services actually
provided and goals achieved by the customer as a result of the IL services.

7. The Contractor shall apply for and document in the customer case record specific comparable
benefits sought and obtained, prior to billing the Department of Education, Division of
Workforce Innovation, Independent Living Program.

8. The ILP shall identify the service(s) to be received, the approximate cost and duration, the
provider, the goal of the program, the intermediate objectives and a review of each objective
at specified points.

9. The Contractor shall assist the customer in the completion of a financial needs test per 12
month period which begins on the date of eligibility, for a service or combination of services.
Services provided will be contingent upon financial need.

10. If a service has been denied to a customer, that decision, along with rationale should be
provided to the customer and appeal rights provided.

11. The Contractor shall maintain contact with customers and services providers to ensure that
services are being delivered in a timely and appropriate manner. Contacts will be
documented in the customer service record.

12. The Contractor shall coordinate service delivery between service providers and eligible
customers to ensure timely and appropriate services until each customers program is
determined to be inactive or closed.

13. The Contractor shall provide quarterly reports indicating customers served and total number
of hours provided. At the end of the contract perickl a final report shall incorporate total
number of consumers served, services provided under each service category of the contract.

14. Information System to produce the Title VI, Part B 704 annual performance report as
required by 45 CFR 1329.

15. All services provided are available statewide.

DELIVERABLES AND TIMELINE

A. jndependPent^i\nngj^re^ervices

1. Information and referral services: At GSIL, this core service is provided by all employees
but particularly through the provision of individualized services by IL Services
Coordinators and Lead Transition Specialists. Information AReferral services are
provided on an individualized basis to meet the specific needs of the consumer.

2. Independent living skills training: As above, this core service is provided on an
individualized basis by IL Services Coordinators and Lead Transition Specialists. These
professionals provide coaching for goal setting and achievement through individual
Independent Living Plans.

3. Peer counseling, including cross-disability peer counseling: GSIL's staff and Board are
comprised of a minimum of 50% individuals with disabilities, which allows staff to
provide peer counseling and understanding on a level not possible for people with
different life experiences. For example, an IL Services Coordinator who uses a
wheelchair provides peer interactions as well as acting as a role model for successful
integration in employment and community engagement.

Contract between GRANfTE STATE INDEPENDENT LA/fNG and /he New Hompshve Department ol Education
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EXHIBIT B CONTINUED

4. Individual and systems advocacy: In addition to GSIL's active systems advocacy in
which consumers receive training on successful advocacy on a systems level, GSIL staff
works with consumers on an individual basis to assist them with enhancing self-advocacy
skills. IL Services Coordinators, Lead Transition Specialists, and Long-Term Support and
Nurse Coordinators work with consumers on how to identify and successfully express
their needs through modeling, role-playing and encouragement. This is customized based
upon individual experiences and the situation at hand.

5. Transition services that:

a. Facilitate the transition of individuals with significant disabilities from nursing
homes and other institutions to home and community-based residences, with the
requisite supports and services: At GSIL, this includes Access Modification
projects to allow individuals safety and independence. Transportation for vital
community access. Independent Living Services Coordination for skills training,
as well as Home and Personal Care Services, to support individuals to
successfully transition and sustain that transition into the community.
b. Aid individuals with significant disabilities who are at risk of entering an
institution so that the individuals may remain in the community: At GSIL, this
includes Access Modification projects to allow individuals safe home
accessibility. Transportation for vital community access, IL Services Coordination
to allow successful and sustained transition, as well as Home and Personal Care
Services. Without these vital services, individuals would not be able to remain in
the community.
c. Facilitate the transition of youth who are individuals with significant
disabilities, who were eligible for individual education plans: At GSIL, this is
provided through the Inspiring the Mastery of Postsecondary Achievement in
College (IMPACCT) and Earn & Learn programs, as well as through IL Services
Coordination, Job Placement, Work Incentives, and Benefits Counseling. Youth
receive group and individualized supports to enhance their skills and success with
reaching their goals, particularly related to Employment, Education, Self-
Advocacy, and Independent Living Skills.

B. Tr^i^r^'tibrnRro^m.

Provide a minimum of consumers who are financially eligible annually with trips that
cannot be provided by another provider to improve the quality of life for consumers to
participate in daily life activities with independence. Provide accessible van transportation
totaling approximately 348 trips annually. Provide an estimated 2121 trips annually
through Transportation Reimbursement Program.

C. .-Acees'sthfedificatibh^Prd'^^

Complete access projects annually (home and vehicle modifications, assistive technology,
and/or durable medical equipment). The focus of this program is on home and community
access, education and employment. The goal is to keep each project at $1,800.

• Con/racf between GRANfTE STATE INDEPENDENT UVING and fhe New HampsNre Department of Education

Page 4 of 6
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EXHIBIT B CONTINUED

D. IndeDcndent Living Services Coordination and TransiUon

Support consumers annually with Independent Living Services Coordination. These
services allow individuals to reach their highest level of independence within their home
and community. The goals that consumers set are important to independence in
community access, education and employment.

Assist consumers in securing necessary comparable benefits for access modification
projects. Assist consumers in securing alternate transportation to increase options and
independence.

Support transition-age students in identifying Independent Living skills and plans to
increase their independence. Transition services also assist individuals transitioning from
nursing or other facilities into the community with services which allow successful and
sustained transition.

E. IgtpginmjEvaluaiion

The Contractor shall conduct bi-annual customer satisfaction surveys as documentation
of quality assurance and program evaluation. The survey will document the individuals
satisfaction with the services provided, measuring the extent to which the services
received improved the consumer's ability to live independently. Results shall be sent to
the Department of Education bi-annual!y.

F. Reporting

•Ji Summary reports will be provided to the Department on a quarterly basis. This
report will include a quarterly itemized expenditure report and budget
reconciliation report.
All Part B funds much be tracked separately, as well as services that were provided
by the resources. Monthly reports will include type of service being provided, staff
providing the service, date of the service, hours of the service and consumers
receiving the service. The first report and invoice will be due November 15, 2021
and the IS'** day of each month, thereafter.

, Program site visits can be conducted with a two-week notice, indicating the
information that will be reviewed, including a comprehensive financial review.

Controci between GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING and the New Hampsture Department ol Edvcation

Page 5 at 6
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EXHIBIT C

BUDGET

Fy2022 FY2023 1  FY2024 1 1  Total

^Salary & Fnhge Benefits ;
$39,034.75 $52,046.50 ,  $13,011.75 [ $104,093.00

' Partner and Vendor Services

^ (Transportation and Access
|,MnHlflr.fltlnn)

$44,283.75 1  $59,045.00
f

!  $14,761.25 $118,090.00

rVcHiclcRepairsTMaintcnanccrFueP
1 and Insurance $23,472.00

\

'  $31,296.00 !  $7,824.00
—

1  $62,592.00
. Transportation Reimbursement
1 Services '  $1,868.25 ^  $2,491.00 $622.75 1  $4,982.00
'' StafTMileage Reimbursement

$384.00

1

.  $512.00 $128.00 ;
1  i

1  $1,024.00

|Total
, $109,042.75 j  $145,390.50

'

$36,347.75 ' $290,781.00

1

;  1 In-Kind Costs Covered by GSIL / ~ FY2022 FY2023 1  ■ FY2024 1  Total !
i  '!
'  - ■ '1

^  $50,702.00 , $67,602.00 $16,901.00 1  $135,205
1  .. . - - j

Etifnltatfe'n^oH^PirlcK^ Upon mutual agreement between the state contracting officer and the contractor, line items in
this budget may be adjusted one to another, but in no case shall the total budget exceed $ 290,781.

■Funding^'Source: Funds to support this request are available in the account titled VR Field Programs-Federal in
FY2022 and FY2623, and anticipated to be available in FY2024, upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds in the future operating budget, with the ability to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal years through the
Budget Office, without further Governor and Council approval, if needed and justified.

FY2022 FY2D23 FY2024
06-56-56-565010-25420000-102-500731 S109,042.75 $145,390.50 $36,347.75
Contracts for Program Services

vMethod'df/PipYmen^tr:
Invoices and reports shall be electronically submitted to:

Dan Frye, Administrator, Services for Blind and Visually Impaired
Daniel.B.Frye@doe.nh.gov

Copy to:
Lisa Hinson-Hatz, Vocational Rehabilitation

Lisa.K.Hatz@doe.nh.gov

Confroct behveen GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING ond ttie New Hampshire Deportment of Education
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Revised 8/2/19

EXHIBIT D

Contractor ObQgotions

Contracts in excess of the sinnplified acquisition threshold (currently set at $250,000) must address
administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where the contractors violate or breach
contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as appropriate. Reference:
2 C.F.R. § 200.326 and 2 C.F.R. 200. Appendix II. required contract clauses.

The contractor acknowledges that 31 U.S.C. Chap. 38 (Administrative Remedies for False Claims
and Statements) applies to the contractor's actions pertaining to this contract.

"N

The Contractor, certifies and affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of each statement of its
certification and disclosure, if any. In addition, the Contractor understands and agrees that the
provisions of 31 U.S.C. § 3801 et seq.. apply to this certification and disclosure, if any.

Breach

A breach of the contract clauses above may be grounds for termination of the contract, and for
deborment as a contractor and subcontractor as provided in 29 C.F.R. §5.12.

Fraud and False Stofements

The Contractor understands that, if the prqect which is the subject of this Contract is financed in
whole or in part by federal funds, that if the undersigned, the company that the Contractor
represents, or any employee or agent thereof, knowingly makes any false statement,
representation, report or claim as to the character, quality, quantity, or cost of material used or to
be used, or quantity or quality work performed or to be performed, or mokes any false statement
or representation of a material fact in any statement, certificate, or report, the Contractor and
any company that the Contractor represents may be subject to prosecution under the provision
of 18 use §1001 and §1020.

Envlronmentol Protection

(This douse is applicable if this Contract exceeds $150,000. It applies to Federal-aid contracts
only.)
The Contractor Is required to comply with all applicable stondards. orders or requirements issued
under Section 306 of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 1857 (h). Section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33
U.S.C. 1368). Executive Order 1 1738, and Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) regulations (40
CFR Port 15) which prohibit the use under non-exempt Federal contracts, grants or loans of
facilities included on the EPA List of Violating Facilities. Violations shall be reported to the FHWA
and to the U.S. EPA Assistant Administrator for Enforcement.

I

Procurement of Recovered Materials

In accordance with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act (42 U.S.C. § 6962). State agencies
and agencies of a political subdivision of a state that ore using appropriated Federal funds for
procurement must procure Items designated in guidelines of the Environmental Protection
Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR 247 that contain the highest percentage of recovered materials
practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of competition, where the purchase
price of the item exceeds $10,000 or the value of the quontity acquired in the preceding fiscal
yeor exceeded $10,000; must pracure solid waste management services in a manner that
maximizes energy and resource recovery; and must have established an affirmative procurement
program for procurement of recovered materials identified in the EPA guidelines.

: J.
Conlraciof



Revised 6/2/19

^  Exhtbit E

Federal Oebarment and Suipenslon

a.y By signature on this Contract, ttie Contractor certifies its complionce, and the compliance
of its Sub-Contractors, present or future, by stating that any person associoted therewith in
the capacity of owner, partner, director, officer, principal investor, project director,
manager, auditor, or any position of authority involving federal funds:

1. Is not currently under suspension, debarment. voluntary exclusion, or determlnotion of
Ineligibllity by any Federal Agency;

2. Does not have a proposed debarment pending;

3. Has not been suspended, debarred, voluntarily excluded or determined ineligible by
any Federal Agency within the past three (3) years; and

4. Has not been indicted, convicted, or hod a civil judgment rendered against the firm
by a court of competent jurisdiction in any matter involving fraud or official misconduct
within the past three (3) years.

b. Where the Contractor or its Sub-Controctor is unable to certify to the statement in Section

a.l. above, the Contractor or its Sub-Contractor-shall be declared ineligible to enter into
Contract or participate in the project.

c. Where the Contractor or Sub-Contractor is unable to certify to any of the statements as
listed in Sections a.2., a.3., or a.4..' above, the Contractor or its Sub-Contractor shall submit
a written explanation to the DOE. The certification or explanotion shall be considered in
connection with the DOE's determination whether to enter into Contract.

d. The Contractor shall provide immediate written notice to the DOE if, at any time,
the Contractor or its Sub-Contractor, learn that its Debarment and Suspension
certification has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

Contractor tnliiats
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Exhibit F

Antl'Lobbylng

The Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions of Section 319 of Public Low 101-121,
Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U .S.C. 135Z and further
agrees to hove the Contractor's representative, execute the following Certification:

The Contractor certifies, by signing and submitting this contract, to the best of his/her knowledge
and belief, that:

a. f^o federal appropriated funds have been paid or shall be paid, by or on behalf of the
undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to Influence any officer or
employee of any State or Federal Agency, o Member of Congress, on officer or employee

of Congress, or on employee of a member of Congress In connection with the awarding
of any Federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal loan,
the entering into ony cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal
amendment, or modification of any Federal contract grant, loan, or cooperative
agreement.

b. If any funds other than federally appropriated funds have been paid or shall be paid to
any person for Influencing or attempting to influence on officer or employee of any
Federal Agency, a Member of Congress, and officer or employee of Congress, or on
employee of a Member of Congress In connection with this Federal contract, grant, loon,
or cooperotlve agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit the "Disclosure of
Lobbying Activities" form In accof_dance with Its instructions
fHFtDr/7www:wWlehouse!aov7omb/QrQn1s7s7lTiin.Ddfl.

c. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when
this transaction was made or entered Into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite
tor making and entering into this transaction Imposed by Section 1352, Title 31 and U.S.
Code. Any person who falls to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil
penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

d. The Contractor also agrees, by signing this contract that It shall require thai the language
of this certification be Included In subcontracts with all Sub-Contractor(s) and lower-tier
Sub-Contractors which exceed $100,000 and that all such Sub-Contractors and lower-tier
Sub-Contractors shall certify and disclose accordingly.

e. The DOE shall keep the firm's certification on file as part of Its original contract. The
Contractor shall keep Individual certifications from all Sub-Contractors and iower-tler Sub-
Contractors on file. Certification shall be retained for three (3) years following completion
and acceptance of any given project.

j*.

ContractorJMiq
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Exhibit G

Rights to inventions Mode Under a Contract, Copy Rights and Confldentlalfty

Rights to Inventions Mode Under a Contract or Agreement
Contracts or agreements for the performance of expeiimental. developmental, or research work
shall provide for the rights of the Federal Govemment and the recipient In any resulting Invention
In accordance with 37 CFR part 401. "Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and
Small Business Rrms Under Govemment Grants. Contracts end Cooperative Agreements." end
any Implementing regulations Issued by the DOE.

Any discovery or invention that arises during the course of the contract shall be reported to the
DOE. The Contractor Is required to disclose inventions promptly to the contracting officer (within 2
months) after the inventor discloses It In writing to contractor personnel responsible for patent
matters. The awarding agency shall determine how rights in the invention/discovery shall be
allocated consistent with "Govemment Patent Policy" and Title 37 C.F.R. § 401.

Confidentiality
All Written and oral information and materiols disclosed or provided by the DOE under this
agreement constitutes Confidential Information, regardless of whether such information was
provided before or after the date on this agreement or how it was provided.

The Contractor and representatives thereof, acknowledge that by making use of, acquiring or
adding to Information about matters and data related to this agreement, which are confidential
to the DOE and Its partners, must remain the exclusive property of the DOE.

Confidential information means all data and Information related to the business and operation of
the DOE. Including but not limited to all school and student data contained In NH Title XV,
Education, Chapters 186-200.

Confidential Information Includes but Is not limited to. student and school district data, revenue

and cost information, the source code for computer software and hardware products owned In
port or In whole by the DOE. financial information, partner Information (Including the Identity of
DOE partners). Contractor and supplier Information, (Including the Identity of DOE Contractors
and suppliers), and any Information that has been marked "confidential" or "proprietary", or with
the like designation. During the term of this contract the Contractor agrees to abide by such rules
as may be adopted from time to time by the DOE to maintain the security of all confidential
information. The Contractor further agrees that It will always regard and preserve as confidential
Information/data received during the performance of this contract. The Contractor will not use,
copy, make notes, or use excerpts of any confidential information, nor will it give, disclose, provide
access to, or otherwise make available any confidential Information to any person not employed
or contracted by the DOE or subcontracted with the Contractor.

Ownership of Ir^eDectual Property
The DOE sholl retoln ownership of all source data and other intellectual property of the DOE
provided to the Contractor In order to complete the services of this agreement. As well the DOE
will retain copyright ownership for any and oil materials, patents and Intellectual property
produced. Including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols, guidelines,
posters, or reports. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials for purposes other than use
for the terms under the contract without prior written approval from the DOE.

Confrocfor 1n/flols_
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state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that GRANITE STATE

INDEPENDENT LIVING is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on

January 29. 1980.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is

in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID; 632S7

Certificate Number; 0005053724

ft

Sft;

O

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 9th day of December A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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GrenUe State

Itxkpenden^ Living

September 9,2021

I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains In full force and effect as of

the date of the contract to which this certificate Is attached. I further certify that It Is understood that the
State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently

occupy the positlon(s) Indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation.

03- Ilh—
Ji/l/F.Bille, ChieflFlnanclal Officer Date



Client#: 492954 GRANISTA6

ACORD^ CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE {MWI/DOmrYY)

2/09/2021

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

USI Insurance Services LLC

3 Executive Park Drive, Suite 300

Bedford, NH 03110

855 874-0123

CONTACT
NAME:

KV Ex«: 855 874-0123 r^c. noI:
E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICS

INSURER A Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Co. 18058

INSURED

Granite State Independent Living

21 Cheneil Drive

Concord, NH 03301

INSURER B Granite State Healthcare & Human Svc WC NONAIC

INSURERC

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURERF

COVERAGES CERTIPICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACTOR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES, LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTK TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADOL
rWSR

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LlABILrTV

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

Professional Liab

GEN-L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY I 1 JECT I X I LOC
OTHER:

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED

AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS UAB

OED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

X| RETENTION sSiOK
WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY y IH
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVEr—I
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N
(Mandatory in NH)
If yes, descritw under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

SUB
WVO POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
(mmiod/yyyy)

02/11/2021

02/11/2021

02/11/2021

02/01/2021

POLICY EXP
(MM/DOfYYYY^

02/01/2022

02/01/2022

02/01/2022

02/01/2022

LIMITS

EACH OCCURRENCE

ilSES fEa^Sffrrence)
MEO EXP (Any orte person)

PERSONAL S ADV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea ecddentl

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

BODILY INJURY (Per acddenl)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per aeddenll

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

w PER
A I statute

OTH-

ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. DISEASE ■ POLICY LIMIT

$1.000.000

$100.000

$5.000

$1.000.000

$3,000,000

$3,000,000

s1,000,000

$5.000.000

$5.000.000

$1.000.000

$1.000.000

$1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORO 101. Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached If more apace la required)

Additional Insured Status is Provided When Required By Contract with respect to the Commercial General

Liability.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

The State of New Hampshire

Department of Education

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRiBEO POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

Vocationai Rehabilitation

21 So. Fruit Street
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Concord, NH 03301

1

ACORD 25 (2016/03) 1 of 1
#S31133128/M31131692

<S> 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
SK2ZP



Granite State

Independent Living
Concord Main Office

21 Chenell Drive

Concord, NH 03301

603.228.9680

800.826.3700

603.225.3304 (fax)
w«'w.g8il.org

Bria^gbtdq>euiatce to Ltfe

Granite State Independent Living's

Mission Statement

To promote quality of life with independence for people with disabilities
through advocacy, referral & information, education, peer support and

transition services.
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CERimED RUBUC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors of tolfeboro • north conw

Granite State Independent Living
Concord, New Hampshire

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Granite State Independent Living
(a, New Hampshire nonprofit organization), which, comprise the statements of financial position
as of Septerhber 30. 2020, and: the reiat^ statements of activities, cash flows, and functional
revenue and expenses for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements,

Manaqemenf s Responslbilitv for'the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and ,fair presehtation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally ac^pted in the United States of
America: this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of intemal control relevant
to the prepamtion arid fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatemerit, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responslbilitv

Our responsibility its to express an opinion on these financial statements based On: our audits.
We' conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America arid the standards applicable' to; fihariclal audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those starida;rds' require that we plan and perfonri: the audits to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements,; vyhother due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers intemal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the: purpose of expressing an opinion PO the effectiveness of the:
entity's intemal control. Accordjrigly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have Obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financiahpositlon of Granite State Independent Living as of September 30, 2020 and 2019,
and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Gomparative Information

The financial' staternents pf Granite State Independent Living as of September 30, 2019 were
audited by other auditors whose report dated February 3, 2020, expresses an unrnpdified opinion
on those statements, in our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein
as of and for the year ended September 30, 2019, is consistent, in all material respects, with the
audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as
a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis.and is hot a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from arid' relates directly to the Underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial, statemerits. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statemerits arid
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves,, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards geriefally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,, the information is
fairly stated, In all material respects, in relation to the firiaricial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required bv Government Auditing Standards

In accordance, with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
January 31, 2021 on oUr consideration of Granite State Independent Living's intemal control
over firiancial reporting arid o,n pur tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreerrients and other matters. The purpose of that report is
to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on intemal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering Granite State Independent Living's internal
control over finaricial reportirig arid compliance.

0

Dover, New Hampshire
January 31.2021



GRANfTE STATE INDEPENDENT LiVtNQ

STATEMENT OP FINANCIAL POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30,2020
IWltH COMPARAtlN^ TOTALS AS OF SEPTEMBER 30. 20191

ASSETS

;2020

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equlyalents
Restrlcte'd cash

Accounts'rabeivable, net
Prepaid e^nses

Total current aaaets

NONCURRENf ASSETS
Investments

Property and equipmenL net

Total rtbncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS'

Without Donor

Restrictions

$  4.657.730

6.360

1.70l466
126:556,

e.493:l36

628;828
065.667

■1.794;695

With Dorior
Restrictions

:$ 34.942

34.942

196.487

196,467

T<?TA1.

S  4.692.672
6,366

1.702.466
126.556

6.S28.680

1.025.315
965.667

1.991.162

2019
TOtAL

$  3.533.475
19,072

1^505.293
360.266

5.416.106

1.004,566
967.308

1.971.694

%  231.429 $ 6.519.262 S 7;390.000

CURRENT UABIUT1ES
Accounts payable
Accmed pa^pD and related liabSIUes
Accrued expenses
Deferred revenue
Current portion of contracts,payable

Total current liabillllM

Contracts payable. net.of current portion

Total llabllltes

NET ASSCTS
Without donor restrictions
vyith donor restrictions:

Time.and purpose restricted
Perpetual endowment

Total net assets

TOTAL UABILITIES AND.NET ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS.

265.541
953.137
,2(^,116
317:409

7.288

1.769.491

1.769.491

6.518.342

6:518,342

8:287.633.

34;942
196.487

231.429

$. 231.429

285,541
953,137
206,116
317.409

7.288

1.769.491

1,769.491

S.518;342.

34,942
196.487

:6.749i771

$  8.519:262

• 96.877
809.650
279,990
151,019

7.950

1.345.686

7.266

1.352.974

5.799.101

42.283
195.642

$  7,390,000

See Notes to Financial' Statements



QRAMlTg STATg tNOgPgWDgNT UVIMG

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

2020

Without Donor Witt) Dorior 2019

pestNctibns Restrictions Total Total

REVENUE AND SUPPORT

Grants $  4.207.019 $  10,896 S 4.217,915 S  2.835,617
Puttlie support 80.072 845 80,917 88:000
Speda! events, net 56.388 . 56.388 451324
Program.fees, net 15.056.022 - 15,056,022 15,482:774
Interest,jnet 51229 - 5.229 11,548
Misceflaneous 4.239 . 4,239 6:859
Galn:on saieiof property 17.200 . 17,200 .

Investmertt lr>come, net 43.713 . 43.713 36,010

Net assets released from restrictions 18.237 (18,237) - •

Total revenue and support 19;488:119 (6.496) 19.481.623 18.506:138

EXPENSES
jprogram Sertdces

Long-term care 12:301,043 . 12,301,043 13.068.767
Community Economic DevelopmenI 3.178.096

- 3.178.096 3,307,359

Total programservfces 15.479:139
• 15.479.139 16;376;126

Supporting Services
General and Administrative 3.184:563 . 3,184.563 2.230.693
Fundralslng 105,178 - 105.176 155.902

Total supporting services . 3:289,739
- 3.289.739 2:386.595

Total expenses .  18.768,878
■ 18.768,878 18.762.721

CHANGE IN NET, ASSETS 719.241 (6,496) 712,745 (256,583)

NET ASSETS. BEGINNING OF YEAR 5,799,101. 237.925. 6.037.026 6.293.609

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR S  6.518.342 S 231.429 $ 6.749:771 S  6,037,026

See Notes to Financial Statements
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GRAMtTE STATE INDEPENDENT LMNQ

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30..2020 AND 2019

2020. 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATINO ACTlVltlES
Ch^ge In net assets $  712,745 $  (256,583)
Adjustments'to reconcile change In net assets te net
cash and restricted cash from i operating activities:

Depreciation 219,619 278,014
Gain on sale of property (17,200) -

Realized toss (gain), on investments 21,706 ■ (4,515)
Unrealized gain on investments (49,672) (16,176)
Restricted, contributions (845) (1.710)

Decrease, (iricTease) ih assets:
Accounts receivable (197,173) 419;400
Prepaid expense 233,710 129,380

(Decrease) increase in liabilities
Accounts.payable 188,664 (43,070)
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 143,287 (64.439)
Accrued expenses (73i874) (134;087)
Defer^ revenue 166^390 32.825

NET CASHIPROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,347.357 339,039

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

SaJeS'Of investments^ net 7,237 4,446
Proceeds from sale of-property 17,200 -

Purchase ofprbperty andequipriient (218,178) (13.665)

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (193.741) (9.219)

CASH FLOWS FROM'FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from restricted contributions 845 1,710
Payments of contracts payablei (7,950) (7.950)

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING,ACTIVITIES (7.105) (6,240)

NET INCREASE IN CASH. CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED GASH 1,146,511 323,580

CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR 3;552.547 3.228,967

CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH. END OF YEAR $  4.699,058 $  3;552.547

See Notes to Financier Statements
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GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

statement of functional expenses
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30/2020

IWrTH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 20191

Program Service Supporting Services

Per^nnel expenses;
Salaries arxJ wages
Ernplcyee teneflts
Payroll taxes

Building occupancy
Grants

Information technology
Depreciatjph
Prof^slonal fees
Travel

Office^ printing, postage, and supplies
Miscellaneous
Insurance

Telephone
Advertising
Equipment lease and maintenance
Transportation
Professional development
Dues and subscriptions
Board of directors

Consultants

Meetings and events
Ihterprister
Meaisand entertainment

Total functional e^nses 2020

Total functional expenses 2019

Long-Term
Care

9.735.223

i.449.240
713,356
'87;228
'12,969
,27;418

48.520

33.737
64,556
48;754

21,660

20.267

28,915

130

4,613
1,948

2.234

67

208

$12.301.043

S 13:068.767

Community Total Total
Economic Program General and Supporting 2020

Devetoomeht Services Administrative Fundralslno Services Total

$  1,819,910 $ 11,555,133 $  1,955.188 $ 63,581 $ 2,018,769 $ 13,573,902
380:240 1,829,480 202r797 9,671 212,468 2,041,948
129,306 842,662 225,267 4,514 229:781 1,072^443
158:046 245;27.4 145.351 4,196 l'49,547 394)821
374:525 387,494 - - . 387,494
22:071- ^9;489 185,897 4,596 190,493 239,982
87,913 136,433 80,852 2,334 83,186 219,619
3;996 37,733 97,275 164 9^459 135,192

51,244 115,800 2:655 284 2)939 118:739
12,299 61,053 50,156 5)537 55;693 116,746
41,051 62,711 33^505 1,078 34,-583 97,294
21,975 21,975 661882 . 66)882 88)857
7,425 27,6^ 54.641 238 54:879 82i571

11,120 40,035 8,269 4,991 13)260 53,295
2,341 2,471 46,^2 98 -47T080 49,551

40,516 45,129 305 - 305 45,434
7,494 9,442 io:o9o 131 10,221, 19,663
3,626 5,8^ 10,553 1,459 I2;di2 17)872

- - 4,260 w 4.260 4.260
150 150 3.400 . 3,400 3)550
174 241 127 2,249 2;376 2.617

2,049 2,257 - - 2.257
625 625 Ill 35 148 771

$  3.178.096 $ 151479.139 $  3.184.563 f 105.176 $ 3.289.739

$• 2.388.'595

$ 18.768.878

1 3:307.359 $ 16:376.126 $  2:230.693 j: 155.902

2019

total

$13,210,825

2,34'9.665
1,063;^
413,038

370,424
80,433

278:014

138:670

15t466
141,213

89,020

88,^1
100,521

•  92,196

48)503

81,585

7l44i
18:348

4,990

16,160

8,352

3i184

798

$ 18.762J21

See Notes to Financlaj Statements
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GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2020 AND 2019

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Grante State Independent Living (the Qfgahization), Is a New Hampshire nonprofit
con^oration; providing a wide range of services to improve the quality of life for individuals
with disabilities in New Hampshire^ This is accomplished through ensuring the availability
of a broad range of services,, advocacy efforts,, and the establishment of social support.
The OrganiMtion impacts lives through two primary service areas;

Long-Term Care Program. The Organization offers a variety of personal care service
programs based oh eligibility.. Personal care attendants provide non-medical, hands-on,
assistanpe with activities of daily living for seniors and adults: living with disabilities. A
personal care worker helps individuals bathe, dress, eat, and navigate a range of other
daily tasks: In addition to providing assistance with activities of daijy living, personal icare
workers can assist vvith housekeeping chores, meal preparatioh. and medication
management: Personal cafe services can; be delivered in either a private homer residential
care setting; or an Individual's place of employment. The Organization also provides
nurSirig facility transition services.

Community Economic Development Program. The Organization is commftted to
assisting seniors, and consumers with disabilities so they can function well wrjthini their
community and pursue personal goals, vyhether through emplpyrfient or earning academic
credit: through youth tfansitipn prografhs. Options are discussed through a call to
Infbrrnation & RefeTral Program Service Coordinators; who help individuals set their goals.
Services provided can includeibenefit planning, transportation, ASL.referral; peer support,
and access modification. Additional services offered may include placement, job coaching,
and employment through the Ticket to Work Program.

Basis Of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted, accounting; pfihciples (US GAAP), which require the Organization to
report information regarding its financial position and activities according to the following
net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions - Net: assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended fOr any purpose in performing the primary objectives of
the Organization. These net assets; may be used at the discretion the Organization's
management and board of directors.



Net assets with donor restrictions - Net assets subject to stipulations Imposed by donors
and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be
met by actions of the-Organization or by passage of time. Other donor restrictions are
perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be rnaintained in
perpetuity. ,

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor
restrictions. When restriction- expires, net assets are reclassified from: net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions in the: statement of activities.

As of September 30, 2020 and 2019„ there were donor restricted net assets of $231,429
$237,925, respectively.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All cash and highly liquid financial instruments with original maturities of three months or
lesSi and which are neither held for nor restricted by donors for long-term purposes, are
considered to be cash and cash equivalents. Cash and highly liquid financial instrijments
restricted for permanent endowment or other long-term purposes are excluded from this
definition.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and restricted cash reported within
the statements of financial position that sum to the total in the statements of cash flows
as of September 30, and is comprised of the following components:

2020 2019

Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,692,672 $ 3,533,475
Restricted cash 6.386 19.072

Total cash S 4.699.Q58 $ 3.552.547

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist primarily of noninterest-bearing accounts due for services
and prrbgrams. The allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable is based on
historical experiance, as assessment of economic conditions and a revjew of
subsequent collections. Accounts receivable are written off when deemed uncollectible.

Revenue and Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when earned. Program service fees and payments under cost-
reimbursement contracts received in advance are deferred to the applicable period in
which the related services are performed or expenditures are incurred, respectively.

Investments

The Organization carries investments in marketable securities with readily determinable
fair values and all investments in debt securities at their fair values in the Statement of
Financial Position. Unrealized gains and losses are included jti the change |n net assets
in the accompanying Statement of Activities.



Property and Depreciation

Property and Equiprrient additions over $1,000 are recorded at cost, if purchased, or if
donated, at estimated fair value on the date received. Material assets with a useful life in

excess of one year are capitalized. Depreciation is provided for using the straight-lirie
method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets as follows, or jri the case of
capitalized leased assets or leaseholdi improvements, the lesser of the useful life or the
asset or the lease term-

Buildings 40 years
Leasehold improvements 5 to 40 years
Furniture, fixtures and equijDment 3 to 6 years
Vehicles 5 years

Costs for repairs and maintenance are expensed when incurred and betterments are
capitalized. Assets sold or othenvise disposed of are removed from the accounts,.along
with the related accumulated depreciation and any gain or loss is recognized.

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or circumstances Indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be
recoverable from the estiniated: future cash flows expected to result for its use and
eventual disposition. When considered impaired, an iriipainnent loss is recognized to the
extent, carrying value exceeds the fair value of the asset There were no indicators of asset
impairment for the year ended September 30,2020 and 2019.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Accountingi Stendards Codificatipn NO. 825 {ASC 825), Disclosures of Fair Value of
Financial Instruments, requires the Organization to disclose fair values for its financial
instruments. The Organization's financial instruments consist: of cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash, accounts receivable, prepaid expenses, accounts payable,
accrued payroll and related liabilities, accrued expenses andi deferred revenue. The
carrying value for all such instruments, considering the terms, approximates fair value at
September 30, 2020 and 2019. The fair values Of investments, are measured using a fair
value hierarchy, vyhich prioritizes the inputs used In measuring fair values (see Note
10),

Contributions

Contributions are recognized when received. AIJ contributions are reported as increases in
net assets without donor restrictions unless use of the contributed asset is specifically
restricted by the donor: Amounts received: that are restricted by the donor to use in future
periods or for specific purposes are reported as increases in net assets with donor
restrictions. Unconditional promises v/ith payments due in future years have an implied
restriction to be used in ;the year the payment is du.e and, therefore are reported as net
assets with donor restrictions until the payment is due unless, the; contribution; is clearly
intended to support: activities of the current fiscal year. Conditional promises, such as
matching grants, are not recognized until they become unconditional, that is, until all
conditions on which they depend are substantially met.



Gifts-ih-Kind Gontributibns

The Organization periodically receives contributions in a form other than cash or
investments. Contributed; property and equipment is recognized as an asset at its
estimated fair value at the^ date of gift, provided that 1he value of the, asset, and its
estimated useful life meets the Organization's capitalization policy. Donated use of
facilities is reported as contributions and as expenses at the estimated fair value of similar
space for rent uhdef simijar conditions. If the use of the space is promised unconditionally
fox a period greater than one year, the amount is: reported as a contribution and an
unconditional promise to give at the date; of gift; and the expense is reported over the term
of use. Donated supplies are recorded as contributions at the date of gift and as expenses
when the donated items: are places into sen/ice or distributed.

The Organization benefits from peXspnal services provided by a substantial number of
volunteers. Those volunteers have donated: significant amounts of time and services in the
Organization's program operations and in its fundraising campaigns. However, the
majority of the contributed services do not meet the criteria for recognition in the financial
statements. Generally Accepted Accounting Principals ajlow recoghitibri of contributed:
services only if (a) the: services create or enhance ndnfinahcial assets or (b) the services
would have been purchased if not; provided by cohtribUtibn, require specialized skills, and
are provided biy individuals possessing those skills.

Grant Revenue
Grant revenue, is recognized: when qualifying costs are incurred for cost-reimbursernent
grants or contracts or when a unit of service; is provided for performance grants. Grant
revenue from federal agencies is subject to independent audit under the Office of
Management and Budget's, Uniform Guidance, and review by grantor agencies. The
review cpuld result in the disallowance of expenditures under the' terms of the grant or
feductibns of future grant funds. Based on prior experience^ the Organization's
management believes that costs ultimately disallowed, if any, would not materially affect
the financial position of the Organization.

Summarized! Financial Information

The financidj. statements jriclude certain prior-year summarized comparative information in
total but riot by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to
constitute a presentation in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction
with the^ Organizations financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2019, from
which the summarized information vyas derived.

Accrued Earned Time

The Organization has accrued a liability for future compensated leave time that its
employees have earned and which is vested with the employee. Accrued eamed; time
amounted to $190,007 and $182,914 at Septerriber 30. 2020 and 2019, respectively..

Advertising Costs

Advertising; costs are expensed as incurred and are reported in the Statements of
Activities and Statement of Functional Expenses.
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Income Taxes,

The Organization is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and qualifies for charitable contributions deductions. The Internal
Revenue Service has determined the Organization to be other than a private foundation
within the meaning of Section 501 (a).

The Organization Is required to fjje a Return Of Organizatipn Exerifipt from Income Taxes
(Form 990) with, the I.RS. In addition, the Organization is subject to income tax on net
income that Is derived from business activities that are unrelated to its exempt purpose. In
fiscal year 2020; the Organization was not subject to unrelated business income tax and
did not file an ̂ empt Organization Business. Income Tax Return (Form 990-T) with the
IRS.

Management has evaluated the Orgariizations tax positions and cdhcluded that the
Organization has maintained its tax-exernpt status and has taken no uncertain tax
positions that would require adjustmentto the financial staterfients. The Organization is no
longer subject to income tax examinations by the United States Federal or State tax
authorities prior to 2017.

Functional Allocation of Expenses'

The costs of providing the various sen<ices and other activities have been summarized on
a functLonal basis, Naturalj expenses are defined: by their nature, such as salaries^ rent,
supplies, etc. Functional! expenses are classified by the type of activity for which expenses
are incurred, such as: management and general and direct program costs. Expenses are
allocated by function using a reasonable and consistent approach that is primarily based
on function and use. Expenses that relate solely to the functional categories are directly
charged, however, there are: certain expenses that are allocated. Personnel expenses,
including salaries arid Wages, employee benefits, and payroll taxes, are allocated based
on tirne and effort estimates. Building occupancy costs are allocated on a square footage
basis.

Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principals requires estjrnates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates, and those
differences could be material.

Financial Instruments arid Credit Rlsk

Deposit concentration risk is managed by placing cash with financial institutions believed
to be creditworthy. At times^ amounts on deposit may exceed insured limits or include
uninsured investment in: money market funds. To date, no losses have been experienced
in any of these accounts. Credit risk associated with receivables considered to be limited
due to high historical; collection rates and because substantial portions of the outstanding
amounts are due ffdm governmental agencies supportive of the Organization's mission.
Investments are made by diversified Investment managers whose performance is
monitored! by the Fiscal Committee of the Board of Directors. Although the fair Values of
investments are subject to fluctuation on a year to year basiSi the Fiscal Committee
believes that the investment policies and guidelines are prudent for the longrterm welfare
of the Organization.
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New Accounting Pronouncements

During the year ended September 30; 2020; the^ Orgariizationi adopted the provisions of
FASB ASU 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for
Contributions Received and, Contributions Made (Topic' 958). This accounting standard
is meant to help not-^for-profit entities evaluate whether transactions should be
accounted for as contributions or as exchange frah'sactidris and,, jf the tfahsaction is
identified as a coritribjutlbn, whether if is ophdifiprial pf uhcondltionah ASU 2018-08
clarifies hovy an organization determines whether a resource provider is receiving
commensurate value in return for a grant; If the resource provider does receive
commensurate value from the grant recipient, the transaction is an exchange
transaction and would follow thei guidance under ASU 2014-09 (FASB ASC Topic; 606).
If no commensurate Value is feceiyed by ihe grant maker, the transfer Is a cPritributipn.
ASU 2018-08 stresses that the value received by the general public as a result of the
grant is. not considered to be commensurate value received by the provider ofthe grant.
Results' for reporting the year ending September 30, 2020 are presented under FASB
ASU 2018-08. The comparative information has not been restated and continues to be
reported under the accounting standards in effect in those reporting periods^ There was
no material impact tp the financial statements as a. result Of adoption. Accordingly, no
adjustmerit to opening'rnet assets was recorded.

2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The following represents the Organization's financial assets as of September 30, 2020 and
2019:'

2020 2019

Financial assets at year end:
Gash and cash equivalents $ 4,692;672 $ 3,533i475
Accounts receivable, net 1,702,466 t,505,293
Investments 1.025.315 1.004.586

Total financial assets 7.420.453 6;d43.354

Less amounts not available to be used

within one year:
Net assefe With dOnOr' restrictions:
Time and purpose restrictions not expected
to be met in less than one year
Perpetual endowment

Total amount not available within one-year

(34,942)
(196.487V

(231.429)

(42,283)
(195.642)

(237.925)

Financial assets available to meet .general
expendityres over the next twelve; rriOriths ^  7.189:024 S 5.835J884

Endowrnerit funds cpnsistef dohor-festricted endowments. Income from donor-restricted
endowments is available for general use;, The portion of endowment funds that are
perpetual in nature are not available for general expenditure.
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The organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments, while also striving to maximize the inves^ept of its available
funds. In addition to financiall assets available to meet general expenditures over the next
year, the organizatipn operates With: a balanced ibudget and anticipates collecting sufficient
revenue to cover genefai expenditures not covered by donor-restricted resources.

As part of the liquidity management plan, the Organization also has a $1,000,000
revolving line of credit available to meet cash flow needs. See Note 7.

RESTRICTED GASH

The Organization is the fiscal sponsor for Transport NH, an advocacy organization
cun^ntiy seeking exempt status as an organization described in IRC Section 5pt(c)(3).

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts fe'ceiyabje insist of the fojiowing at September 30, 2020:

Receivable Allowance

Medicaid

Other

$ 774.234 $
965725 (37.493)

Net

$  774;234
928:232

Total S 1739:959 $ (37.493) $1.702:466

Accounts receivable consist of the following at Septeniber 30; 2019:

Receivable Allowance

Medicaid

HtleVII
Other

Total

$  737,680 $
28,406

740.662 (1.455)

Net

$ 737,680
28,406
739.207

$ 1 ^ (1455^ ^1 505793

5. INVESTMENTS

The following is a summary of investments at September 30:

2020

Unrealized

FafrValue Cost Gain (Loss)

Exchange-traded funds $  120,524 $ 115.405 $  5,119
Mutual funds 167,172 144,129 23,043
U.S. Treasury obligations 95,264 95,125 139

U.S. Corporate, bonds 399,202 389,572 9,630
U.S. Common stock 243.153 202.317 40.836

Total $  78 767
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2019

Unrealized

Fair Value Cost Gain (Loss)

Exdhange-traded funds $ 119,476 $ 108,970 $ 10,506
Mutual funds 151,327 149i278 2,049
UVS. Treasury obligations 184,985 185,206 P21)
U S'. Corporate bonds 313,130 313,870 (740);
U.S. Common stock 235.668 212.167 23.501

Total S 1.004 586 $ 969.491 $ 35 095

Interest mte risk is the risk that changes in the market interest rates will adversely affect
the fair value of an investment. Generally; the longer the maturity of the investment the
greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates.

The organizations investment poljcy states that not more than 10% (at cost) of the
iinvestrnent portfolio may be invested in the securities of any one issue, with the exception
of the U.S. Gbvemrnent or its agencies. The maximum amount invested in the securities of
Issuers in the same industry shall not be more than 25% (at cost) of the portfolio.

6. PROPERTY. EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION

Property, equipment and vehicles cohsisted! of the following^ as of September 30, 2020 and
2019:

2020 2019

Land $  69,198 $  69,198
Buildings and Improvements 1.473,974 1',386,907
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 1,045,689 1,029,239
Vehicles 632.525 667.912

3,221,386 3;153,256
Less.accumulated depreciation (2.255.519) (2.185.948)

Property and equipment, net 1 $  967.308

Depreciation expense for the years ended September 30., 2020 and 2019 was $219,619
and:$278,014 respectively,

7. BANK LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has a $1,000,000 revolving line of credit agreement with a bank,
secured by all assets. Borrdwihgs under the line bear interest at the: bank's LiBOR
Advantage rate plus 3,50%, with a floor of 590%, adjusted monthly. Interest only
payments are required monthly with the principal payable on demand. At September 30,
2020 and 2019, the Organization had no outstanding balance on the line of credit and did
riot draw on the line during fiscal year 2020.
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8. CONTRACTS PAYABLE

During fiscal: year 2016, the Orgahizatloh eriteTe.d into a leasei agreement for a new
Nashua office location. Tfie Organization was required to make leasehold
improvements which were paid in full by the lessor. As part of the terms of the
agreement, the Organization is required to pay the lessor $663 per month, in addition to
the base rent, for the improvements performed by the lessor. At September 30, 2020
the outstanding balance^ was $7,288 and is expected to be paid in full during the year
ended Septerriber OO, 2021.

9. ENDOWMENT FUNDS

The Organization's, endowment consists of individual funds established by donors to
provide funding for specific activities and general operations. New Assets associated
With endoWmerit funds are classified and reported based pn the existence or absence of
donor-imposed restrictions.

The Board of Directors has interpreted the New Hampshire Uniform Prudent
Management of Institutional iFunds Act (URMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the
fair value: of the original gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds,
unless there are explicit dpfipr stipulations to the contrary: At September 30: 2020, there
were ho such dpnOT stipulations. As a result pf this interpretation, net assets with donor
restrictions are classified as (a) the original value of gifts donated! to the endowment, (b)
the original value of subsequentgifts donated to the endowment (including contributions
receivable net of discount and allowance for doubtful accounts), and (c) accumulations
to the endowment made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor, gift
instrument at the time the accumulation is added. Donor restricted amounts not retained

in. perpetuity are subject tp apprppriatibn for expendjture !by the Organizatipn in a
manner conSisteht with the standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA. The following
factors were considered in makirig a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-
restricted endowment funds:

• The duration and preservation pf the fund.
• The purposes ofthe Organization and the donor-restricted endowmentfund.
• General economic conditions.
• The possible' effect of jnflatlpn and deflation..
• The expected total return from income and the appreciation of Investments.
• Other resources of the Organization,
• The investment policies of the Organization.

investment and Spending Poiicies

The Organization has adopted investment and spending- policies: for the
investment funds that attempt to provide a predictable stream of funding for
operations while seeking to maintain the purchasing power of the investment
assets. Over tirne, jpng ternii rates of return should be equal to. an artioUht
sufficient to maintain the purchasing power of the investment assets, to provide
the necessary capital to fund the spending policy,, and to cover the costs: of
managing the investment funds. The target minimum rate of return is the
Consumer Price Index plus 5% on an annual basis., Actual returns in any given
year rnay vary from this amount. To satisfy thjs Ipng-terrn rate-of-return objective,
the ihvestmeht portfolio is structured oh: a total-return approach through which
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inyestmeht returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and
unrealized) and .current yi^ld (interest and dividends). A significant portion of the
funds are invested to sedk growth of prihcipal over time or unless the
Organization needs to access for immediate need, with Board approval.

The investment fund spending^rate formula is used to determine the maximum
amount to spend from the investment fund each year. The rate, determined and
adjusted from; time to time by the Board of Directors, is applied to the average fair
value of the investment fund investments, for the prior 12 quarters at December
31 of each year to determine the ̂ spending amount for the upcoming year. In
establishing this policy, the long-term, expected return on the investnierit fund
was considered, the rate set with the objective of maintaining the purchasing
power of the Investment fund over time.

Funds with Deficlehcie's

Due to imarket cbriditjons, the; fair vsijue of assets associated with individual donor
restricted endowment funds may falli below the 'level that: the donor or UPMIFA
requires the Organization to retain as a fund of perpetual duration. There were no
deficiencies at September 30, 2020 and 2019;

Changes in endowment net assets for the year ended September 30, 2020 are as
follows:

Perpetual
Endowment

Endowment net assets, beginning of year , $ 195,642
Contributions ^5
Endowment net assets, end of year $ 196.487

10. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

FASB: Accounting Standard Codification 820 "Fair Value Measurements" provides a
definition of fajr vajue which focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price,
establishes a framework in generally accepted accpuntihg' principles for rrieasurihg fair
value which emphasizes that fair value, is a market-based' measurement, not an entity-
specific measurement, and requires expanded disclosures about fair value
measurements. In accordance with FASB ASC 820, the Organization may use
valuation techniques consistent with market, income and cost approaches to measure
fair value. As a basis for consideririg riiartret participant assumptions in fair value
measurements. ASC topic 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy, which pnoritizes the.
inputs used in measuring fair values. The hierarchy gives the highest priority of Level 1
measurements and the lowest priority to Level 3 measurements. The three levels of the
fair value hierarchy under ASC Topic 820 are described as follows;

Level 1 - Inputs to valuation, methodology are quoted prices available in active
markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.
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Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market
prices in active markets; which are either directly or indirectly observable as of
the reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the use of rtiodels or
other valuation methodologies.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs in
sitUatJons where! there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability and the
reporting eritity rriakes estimates and assumptions related to the pricing of the
asset or liability indudihg assurriptions regarding risk.

The following is a description, of the valuation methodologies used for assets at fair
value. There have been no changes in the methodologies used at September 30, 2020.

Government obligations: Valued using pricing models maximizing the use of
observable inputs for sirriilaf securities.

Nongovernment obligations: Consist of corporate bonds that are valued using
pricing models maximizing the use of observable inputs for similar securities.
This includes basing value on yields currently available on comparable securities
of issuers with sihnilar credit ratings.

Common stocks: Valued at: the closing market price on the stock exchange
where they are traded (primarily the New York Stock Exchange).

Mutual funds and Exchange traded furids: All actively traded mutual funds and
exchange traded funds are valUed at the daily closing price as reported by the
fund. These funds are required to publish their daily net asset value (NAV) and
to transact at that price. All mutual funds arid exchange traded funds held; by the
Organization are open-end mutual funds that are registered with the Securities
and Exchange Commission.

2020

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Exchange traded funds
Mutual funds

U.S. Treasury obligations
U.S.,Corporate bonds
U.S. Common stock

$ 120;524
167,172

243.153

$

95,264
399,202

120,524
167.172
95,264
399,202

243.153

Total investments s 530.849 S 1.025 315
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2019

Exchange traded funds
Mutual funds

U.S. Treasury obligations^
U,S. Corporate bonds
U.S. Comrhdn stock

Level 1

:$ 119,476
1:51.327

235.668

Level 2

184,985
313,130

Level 3 Total

$ 119,476
151,327
184,985
313,130
235.668

Total Investments S 506.471 $ 498 115 ±

11. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTION

Net assets vyith dbhor restrictions are cdrnpnSed of the fbllowihg at September 30„ 2020
and'2019:

Time and purpose restricted
Access modification program
Advocacy activities
Cbrtirtiunity economic deveippmeht progfani
IMPACGT program

Totattime and purpose; resfncted

Perpetual endbvwnent:

Total

2020

10,396
5,661

6,790
12.095

34,942

196.487

$

2019

18,016
5,161
6,790

12.316

42,283

195.642

Net assets were released from donor' restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the
restricted purpose or the occurrence of the passage of time as follows for the years ended
September:30, 2020 and 2019:

Subject to expenditure for specified purpose:
Access modification program
Advocacy activities
IMPACCT program

Total time and purpose restricted

2020 2019

$  18.016 $ 47,199
64

221 1.242
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12. RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization provides a tax-deferred annuity plan qualified under Section 403(b) of
the Internal Revenue Code. All salaried employees working 30 or more hours a week and
are 21 yeare of age pr older may participate In the plan. The Organization matches up to
100% of empjpyee contnbutions to the plan, to a maximum^ of 6% of salaries, depending
oh the years of service. The Oi^ariization contributed $82,171 and $114,166 for the years
ended September 30, ,2020 and 20t9, respedively.

13. OPERATING LEASES

The Orgariizatipn leases office space under the terms of non^cancellable lease
agreements that are scheduled to expire at various times through 2024. The Organization
also rents additional facilities on a month to month basis. Rent expense under these
agreements, which is includedi in building occupancy in the Statement of Functional
Expenses, totaled $173,090 and $221,856 for the years ended September 30, 2020 and
2019, respectively.

The Organization also leases office equipment under non-cancellable lease agreements
that are scheduled to expire^ at various tinies through 2022. Equipment rental expense,
which Is included in equipment lease and maintenance in the Statenrient of, Functiohal
Expenses, totaled $45,715 and $45,616 for the years ended September-30, 2020 and
2019, respectively.

Estinaated future minimum lease payments on the above leases are as follows;

Year Ending
SeptemberSO Amount

2021 $ 150,279
2022 73,356
2023 64,952

2024 47.784

Total

14. CdNCENTRATIONS OF RISK

A material part of the Organization's revenue is dependent upon government sources, the
loss of which would have a matenaify adverse effect on the Organization. During the years
ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, Medicaid accounted' for 70% and 75%,
respectively, of total revenues and 46% and 49%, respectively, of total accounts
receivable. The State of New Hampshjre contracts with managed care organizations to
reimburse the Organization as a provider of services rehdeied.

16. RECLASSIFICATION

Certain arnounts and accounts from the prior year's fiharicial statements were reclassified
to enhance comparability with; the current year's financial statements.
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16. LONG TERM CARE STABIUZATION PROGRAM

In response to COVID-1,9, in April 2020, the State of New Hampshire established the Long
Term Cafe StabjlizatiOh (LTGS) Program to provide stipends to certain front line Medicaid
provjdefs. The program was developed to incentivize; these- direct care workers to remain
in of fejojn this critical workforce and continue to provide high quality care to vulnerable
persons during the pandemic: Under the program, the New Hampshire Department Of
Employment Security (NHES) would distribute $300 per week in stipends to eligible full
time front, line workers and $150 per week in stipends to eligible part time front line
workers. The funding for the LTCS Program was provided through the Coronavirus Relief
Fund. Durihg the year ended September 30, 2020; the Organization received grant
reveriue of $1,123,800 and expended $1,123;800 under the grant through payroll and fees
for service.

17. OTHER MATTERS

The impact of the hovel Qofonavirus (COVID-19) and measures to prevent its spread are
affecting the Organization, the significance of the impact of these disruptions, inciudirig
the extent of their adverse impact on the Organization's financial and operational results,
will be dictated by the length of time that such disruptions dontihue and, in turn, will
depend on the currently unknowable duration of the COVID-19 pandemic and the impact
of governmental regulations that rriight; be imposed in response to the pandemic. As of
January 31, 2021, due to the measures put in place to prevent the spread of COVID-19 we
are unable to estimate the future performance of the Organization.

\

18. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that Occur after the statement of financial
position date, but before financial statements are available to be Issued. Recognized
subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional evidence about
conditions that existed at; the statement of financial position date; including the
estimates inherent In the process of preparing financial statements. Nonrecognized
subsequent events are events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist
at the statement of financial position date, but arose after that date. Management has
evaluated subsequent events through January 31;, 2021, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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GRAM^ STATE IWDEPeMOgMT LiViMQ

SCHEOLTU OF EXPENDnURES OP FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER M. 2020

FEDERAL GRANTOR/
pass*through:grantor/
PROGRAM Tm£

U.8. DEPT. OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

AdmlntstrMkwi tor CommunHv LMrw

ACL Centen for Indtpcndsnt LMng
COVlD-19 - ACL Ccnfors for Indepcindant LMrtg

Admlnlitratten torCommtjnBv LKrho
Pasaad through State of NH Department of Education
ACL Centara.for indep^^ LMng • SIsta Grwts

Tobt U.S. Department df'Heailh end Human SerN^ces

U.a. DEPARTMENT OP THE TREASURY"

Passed tlvough Governor's Office of Emaqency Rellef ar>d Recosrery
COVIO-tg t.ong Tarrn Cm Stebflbotlon; Program
Coronavlrus Rellef:Fund

Total U.S. pepartrnent of theTressury.

FEDERAL

CFDA

number:

93.432

93.432

.93.369

PASS

THROUGH

GRANTOR

NtfWBSR

FEDERAL

EXPENDITURES

973.614
441.735

1056690

21.019

1,^15.559

126.695

1,542.244.

1.123.600

PASSED

TO

SUBRECtPtENTS

1.123:800

SOCIAL SECURITY ADMINISTRATION

Soda! Security 'Wortc: Incentives Plarining and Asslstariee Program

Total Soctat Security/Ministration

Total expenditures of fadefsl awards

96:006 317.727 $_

317.727

2.963.771 $_

63.933

63,933

MOTS A • BAgl'S OF PRE$E^ATIQN
Tha:accompany^.sched^'of ttfoendltures of foderal'swards (lhe:8chedute) includes the fede^ grant actMty.'of Oranlte^Stata Independent
Living under programs of the Meral government for ihe year et)ded'^ptemt)er'30. 2020: The'inrormallon In.thls Scffodule Is'presented In
accordanM v4th the reqirtrertwnts of 'nue;2 U.S. Code of Federal Regutatfons Part 200. Unlfonn'Admlr^^tive Requlremants. Cost Prfodplas.
end Audit Requirements to Federal Awards (Uniform Giiidanca). Because the Schedule presehts onty a'selected portion of the operatiansof
Gratihe Sfotejindcpenderit Living. It is rto'lhtendad to,arid does not praserit the finsnciel portion, changes In net'sssats. orcash hows of Granite
State Indeperident LMng.

NOTE B ■ SUMMARY OF SIGNinCANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES

Dtpendltures reportad.oin the Schedule are reported on the;accaiel tta^s Of account^. 'Su^ expenditurM-ere recognized foUow^ the cost
pilndplaa'contained in Uniform Guidance. where:in:cer1aln types of cxpendltures;are not'aUowable or are limit^ to reimbursmenL Negative
arhOuhts shdwm ori OierScKeduie' represent ad|ustments or credits rnede in the nqrrnar course of .business to amounts,reported'.ss:opendltures
In ortpr vears.

NOTE C ■ rNOIRECT COST RATE,

Granite State independent Living has tieded to not use the 10-percent de irOnlmis indirect cost rats allowed under. Unlform'Guidanos.
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GRANITE STATE INDEPEMDFNT I IVlKiR ■STRATHAM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL, CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING: AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ONi

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCbRDANCE WITH GOVERNMENr AUP/r/NG SrA/VDARDS

To the Board, of Directors of
Granite State Independent; Living
Concord,, New Hampshire'

We have audited, in accordance with the: auditing standards:,generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards appjiQabie to financia[ audits contained !in Government
Auditing Standarxis issued by the CbrhptfQller General of the lUnited States, the financial
statements of Granite State independent Living, (a New Hampshire nonprofit orgahization),
which comprise the stateniehts of financial position as of September 30, 2020, and the related
staternents of activities, cash flows'i and functional revenue and expenses, fbr the year then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.'and have issued our report thereon
dated January 31, 2021.

Internal ControliQver Financial Reporting
In planning and performing, our audits bf the financial statements, we considered Granite $tate
Independent Living's Interhaj codtfoji over financial ,reporting (internal control) to dejerifiihe the
audit procedures that ace apprppriate la the circumstancesTor the pUrppse, of'expressing our
opinion on: the firtahcial statementSi but not for the,purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Granite State Independent: Living's InteltiaJ contrPI., Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Qrgahization's internal control.

A deffc/ency /P Ynfema/ confro/ exists when the design or operation of a control dpes hot allow
imanagement or emplpyees, :ih the normal course of performing! their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect ahdi eoaect, misstatements on a timely basjs, A material viteakness is a
deficiency, pr a combination, of deficiencies, in internal cphtrol, such that there is a, reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's fihanciai statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected! on a timeiy baCis. A significant deficiency is a defi.ciehcy, or a
combination of deficiencies, in rnternallcontrol .that is less severe; than a material weakness, yet
lmportant>enough,to merit attention by those charged with gpyerriarice.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to Identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significartt deficiencies,. Given these limitations, during
our audits we did nbtlidehtity any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to fee material
weaknesses. HoWeyer, material weaknesses may exist that have not been Identified .

Compllance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance: about whether Granite State Independent Living's
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we, perforrned tests of jts cprripiiahpe
\with icertain proyisibns of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreenrients, noncompliance
with which coUid haye a direct and; material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was inot an
objective of our audit; and accordingly,; we do not express such-an opinion. The results of our
tests disclosed: no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reji^OTi&d under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the,scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide'an opinion on, the effectiveness of
the organization's internal controLor on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards' in considering the
organization's internar control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is: not suitable
for any other pufpo'se.

4- Atf&odJL

Dover; !New Hampshire
January 31, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUpiTORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH, MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY

THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of

Granite State, Indeperldent Living
Concord, Ne\w Harnpshife

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Prograni
We have audited Grariite State Independent Living's pprhpliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Compliahce Supplernent that could, have a direct and
material effect on each of Grapite State .Independent Living's major federal programs for the
year ended Septerpber 30, 2020. Granite State independent Living's major federal programs
are identified in; the summary of auditors'' results section of the accorppanying schedule of
findings andi questioned' costs.

Management's Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance >^ith the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' ResponsiblLity
Our responsibility' is to express an opinion on, compliance for each of Grahite State
Independeht Living's major federal prograrns based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit- of corripliance in accordancci with
auditing standards generally accepted in the Uhjted States oi America; the standards
applicable to financial audits contained \t\ Govemment Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United Ctates; and the audit requirements; of Trtje 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrati\/e Requirement, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements of Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and Uniform
Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with, the; types of incompliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct qnd rtiaterial effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis,, evidence about Granite State Independent Living's, compliance with
those requirefnents and performing: such otlier procedures as We cohsidered necessary in the
circumstances;

We believe that our audit provides, a reasonable basis, for our opinion on corripliance for each
major federal prpgratri. However, our audit does not provide a legal determihatioh of Granite
State Indepehdent Living's compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
in our opinibn', Granite State Independent Living complied, in all material respects, with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that couidi have a direct and material effect
on each of rts major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2020.

Report on jhterhai Cpnffdl Dyer Compliahce
Managerrient of Gfahite State Independent Living, is iresponsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance: with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. In planning and: performing our audit of compliance, we
considered Granite State' Independent Living's Internal control over compliance with the types
offequirements that could have a direct and. material effect on each major federal program to
determine: the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinibn'on compliance for each major federal program, and to test and report on
internal control over compliance In accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness/of internal control over compliance. Accordingly,
we do not express an, opinion on the effectiveness of Granite State Independent Living's
internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal cdntfdl over cbmpliance exists when the design or operation Of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent; or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federai'program on a timely basis. A matena/wea/rness//?
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combihation of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requiremeht of a federal program will not be
prevented,, of detected, arid co'frected, oh a timely basis.. A significant deficiency in. internal
control over compliance Is ai deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control
over compliahce with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in intemal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

1

Our consideration (Of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described In
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies' in intemal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control oyer compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report oh intemal contfQl Qver compliance is solely to describe the scope of
Our testing of intemal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Dover, New Hampshire
January 31, 2021
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GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSJS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2020

A. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified ppiriipo on whether the financial
statements of Granite State independent Living were prepared in accordance with
GAAP.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial: statements are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over FJnancial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statemerits Per^rmed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No
material weaknesses are reported.

3. No instances of noncompliance materiafto the financialstatements of Granite State
Independent Living, which would be required to be reported in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards, were disclbsed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal; control over major federal award programs are
reported in the: Independent Auditors! Report on Compliance for Each Major
Program and on Internal Cohtrol Over Compliance Required by Uniform Guidance.
No material weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditprs' report oh compliance; for the major federal award programs for
Granite State Independent Living expresses an unmodified opinion on all major
federal programs.

6. There were no audit jhdings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2
CFR 200.51.6(a).

7. The program tested as a major prbgrafn Was: U.S; Department of the Treasury,
Coronavirus Relief Fund, 24 .019.

8. The threshold for distinguishing between Type A and B programs was. $750,000.

9. Granite State Independent Living was determined to be a low-rjsk auditee.

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS-MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM AUDIT

None
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SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE Year ended September 30. 2020

SOCIAL SECURITY ADMINISTRATION

FINDING 2019-001 '

Condition; The Oxganlzatipn did hot have written policies and procedures related: to sub-recipient
mprijtdring and management as required under Uniform Guidance. Further, sub-recipient
agreements did not include certain elements required by Uniform Guidance.

Recommendation; The Organization should address the weaknesses noted above by
implementing written policies and pi.rocedu.res related to sub-recjpient monitoring and
management, in order to comply with Uniform Guidance. Further, sub-recipient agreements
should be amended to include elements required by the: Uniform Guidance.

Current Status: Corrected.
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Chair & Secretary
Geoffrey Souther (2023-2)

Professional Affiliation: NH Department of Health & Human Services (retired)

Vice Chair

'  VACANT

2"^ Vice Chair
Rev. Edward L. Costa Jr (2022-1)

Professional Affiliation: Conservative Congregational Christian Church, Ordained Minister

Treasurer

Ken Traum (2022-2)

Professional Affiliation: State of New Hampshire, Consumer Advocate (retired)
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Iris Polley (2022-1)

Totessional Affiliation: Sobriety thru Photography, Group leader

Larry Smukler (2022-1)

Toressionai Affiliation: New Hampshire Supreme Court

Mike Byrne (2021-1)

Professional ATTin9tl6h: Unites States Marine Corp (retired)

Jaroslaw Hecka (2022-1)

Professional Affiliation: Achievement Therapy Services, Physical Therapist

Theo Vougias (2022-2)

Professional Affiliation: Devine Millimet, Associate

Dave Qualey (2022-1)

Professional Affiliation: Mobility Works
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Erin Bassegio

II

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Granite State Independent Living, Dover, NH

Associate Director of Community Services November 2020 - Present
•  Manage Access Modification, Service Coordination, Employment, and ECSP Programs.
•  Assist with the management of Title VII, Part C and Title VII, Part B grants and reporting.
•  Support program growth and the development of new funding sources and programs.

Independent Living Services Manager November 2019 - November 2020
•  Provided supervision of the statewide team of Independent Living Services Coordinators and Staff

Interpreter.

Employment & Independent Living Services Coordinator October 2018-November 2019
•  Identified and utilized local, state, and federal resources to support employment and independent

living for people with disabilities.

New Hampshire Democratic Party Coordinated Campaign, Dover, NH
Field Organizer July - August 2018
•  Recruited, trained, and led volunteers in Dover, Barrington, Rollinsford, and Somersworth.
•  Managed data collection and entry into the VoteBuilder/NGP VAN database.
•  Supported start-up of the Dover field office and participated in strategic planning for the region.
•  Used social media outlets to maximize local campaign outreach and visibility.

University of Rochester Medical Center, School of Nursing, Rochester, NY
Assistant for the Ciinical and Educational Resource Center September 2015 - July 2018
•  Operated the Resource Center which included assessing and troubleshooting problems and

complaints from students, staff, faculty, and school visitors.

•  Oversaw office operations such as database and resource management.

AmeriCorps National Civilian Community Corps-FEMA Corps, Vinton, lA
Corps Member August 2014 - May 2015
• Worked as an Information Technology Specialist and Logistical Planner for FEMA.

•  Participated in and assisted in arranging 10 events with non-profit and volunteer organizations
benefiting diverse communities in need across 5 states and the District of Columbia.

EDUCATION

Master of Arts in Social and Public Policy Graduated June 2018

SUNY Empire State College, Saratoga Springs, NY

•  3.86 GPA

•  Completed an advanced certificate in Community Advocacy

Bachelor of Arts in Individualized Studies Graduated May 2014

Edinboro University of Pennsylvania, Edinboro, PA

•  Coursework concentration in Health & Nursing Sciences

•  Minor in Psychology



SaiaiO'Doll

Qualifications Summary; Customer orieuted professional with supervisoiy and/or Team
Leader experience. Strong administiative and organizational skills to plan, manage, and
execute day-to-day office operations. Experience in payroll preparation, billing, and
knowledge of DOT regulations. Demonstrated ability to listen, comiuimicate (wiitten and
verbal) with all levels of staff, vendors, and clients. Good decision-making skills and the^
ability to ftmction well imder stress while working in a fast-paced environment.

Education:

Gi-anite State Coilege-Concord. NH

June 2011

Bachelor's Degree - Btiswess Management
• GPA 3.69

Employment:

Granite, State IndeDendent.-Living - Concord. NH. August 2015 - Present
TransDortaiion Manager

tfanspoitation needs of GSIL consumer, broker clients as
well as those.within the public seeking (mainly) wheelchair accessible
trauspoilation.

•  Ensure that several company, funding agencies and governmental reports
(that docimient the variety of services we provide each month) are
generated.

• Oversee the maintenance of company vehicles to ensiue the highest level
' of safety and efficiency.

• Oversee and actively pailicipate as a State Certified School Bus Driver
Trainer the training of all dr ivers including those with a school bus
certificate

o Maintain all driver qualification files
•  Participate in; NH Transportation Assistance Program, NH State

Coordinating Coimcil for Conunuuity Transportation & Region 3-NHSCC

Student Transnoitation of America - Bradford. NH July 2013-March 2015
.Traimne Supervisor

State Certified Driver/ School Bns Driver Trainer
•  Prepare & maintain driver/monitor files of staff of 60+ including all

documents for their required background checks & clearances, school bus,
first.aid & CPR certifications, physicals & licensing for state & company
records



Prepare & submit all weekly, monthly & annual reports of this training to
pupil transportation with the state of NH as well as direct report supervisor
with company

School Bus Driver - STA Oct. 2010-March 2015

•  Provide safe, reliable transportation to school age children to & from school

•  Prepare daily & weekly reports & paperwork necessary to document this task
such as pre/post trip reports, mileage logs & student counts

Krvstal's Restaurant - Aiken. SC July 2008 - July 2009
Shift Manaeer

•  Assisted General Mgr with the shift operations
•  Supervised crew of between 5-10 during the breakfast and lunch shifts
•  Assigned specific tasks during shifts to optimize customer service. At end of

the shift I counted the drawers for the shift and prepared the deposits
•  Processed shift inventory; ordered supplies based on need

Laidlaw Education Services - Peterborough. NH June 2000 - April 2007

Branch Manaeer

•  Successfully coordinated the day to day operations for the safe transportation
of roughly 10,000 students for 4 separate school districts simultaneously

•  This included assigning bus routes to drivers, reviewing the daily maintenance
schedule to ensure that there are plenty of safe buses for each run, and help
with training new and veteran drivers to keep in compliance with DOT
standards.

Processed weekly payroll for branch staff
Processed branch invoices for billing

Successfully maintained a monthly budget
Oversaw maintenance of over 100 staff and vehicle files for DOT and

company criteria
Processed the necessary documentation of branch operations for company;
including daily, weekly, monthly and annual reports
Directed the recruitment of over 100 branch positions
Trained, supervised and evaluated staff, coached improvements; resulted in
multilateral staff achievement of work objectives
Successfully refined and implemented new projects

Maintained a very high level of customer satisfaction

Laidlaw Education Services ("other positions)

Driver Trainer - State Certified March 1997 - Present



Objective:

To obta n emp oyment w th an eth ca and forward th nk ng organ zat on offer ng opportun t as for
advancement.

Transportation Coordinator / Lead Driver, GSIL, Concord, NH - 11/2020 - Present
Current y serv ng as Lead Drver and Transportat on Coord nator. B ng and Schedu ng whee cha r
transport.

Team Lead, Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Concord, NH -1/2016 - 5/2020
Served as Customer Serv ce Team Lead superv s ng a team of 20 CSR's n a fast paced, h gh vo ume ca
center. Respons b t es nc ude ma nta n ng ca qua ty standards, broker ng med ca transportat on
requests, reso v ng esca ated ssues, staff deve opment and schedu ng.

I

Customer Service Rep, Eversource Energy, Manchester, NH 12/2014-12/2017
Performed dut es of Customer Serv ce Rep n h gh vo ume, fast paced nbound ca center. Out es nc ude
process ng customer payments, ass st ng customers w th nterpret ng b s, reg ster ng for ass stance
programs, d spatch ng emergency ne crews, fie d ng outage ca s, connect ng and d sconnect ng
res dent a serv ce and ma nta n ng customer records.

Team Lead, Carbonite, Lewiston, ME -7/2011- 7/2014
Performed dut es of Customer Serv ce Team Lead n our 150 seat techn ca support ca center. Dut es
nc uded manag ng the deve opment of a 25 person techn ca support team, rev ew ng reports by team
superv sor and prepar ng coach ng object ves for reps. Performed qua ty checks on tech support t ckets,
deve oped and rev ewed performance reports, dent fied areas to mprove, and mp emented measures to
mprove performance eve s and meet object ves. Exped ted and fac tated the esca at on of T er 2 tech
ssues. Worked w th eng neer ng to dent fy and reso ve software bugs. Ass sted w th Ul deve opment on
mob e apps.

Sales Representative, AT&T Wireless, Concord, NH — 3/2010-6/2011
He d pos t on of comm ss oned Reta Sa es Support Rep. Educated customers on w re ess phone and data
opt ons. fvlet sa es quotas and revenue targets for new act vat ons, customer renewa s, and accessor es.
Ensured customer sat sfact on by reso v ng a customer ssues and concerns. Ba anced end of the day
transact ons, and prepared bank depos ts. Performed account ma ntehance and troub eshoot ng of ce u ar
handsets and mob e broadband dev ces. inst tuted grass-roots market ng campa gns to ncrease sa es and
attended techn ca tra n ng. Managed nventory and store cash. Mon tored store operat ons for aud t
comp ance. Conducted ongo ng staff deve opment coach ng.



Gilbert:

Objective: To obtain employment in a professional organization that provides individuals with support in coordinating the
services that will help them be successful in their personal goals and treatment plan. In addition to the latter, help clients
obtain qualiQ' services that are individualized and appropriate for their needs and help them live their life to the fullest.

Professional Experience:
Aug2017- independent Living Services Coordinator-Granite State Independent Living
Present

> Help individuals acquire equipment or services to live independently in their environment
> Attend meetings with other service coordinators to discuss recent developments in CSIL
> Perfonn home visits and complete paperwork with consumers to obtain services

> Record notes on contacts with consumers in DAC's system used by GSIL
> Work with the IMPACCT students in the classroom and after they finish the program

Aug 2006 to Faraprofessional Hollis-Brookline High School
Aug2017

> Help students identify, and develop strategies they can use on academic tasks
> Help students meet the goals and objectives as outlined in their lEP
> Collect data as outlined by case managers and therapists for students
> Give feedback to case managers and other team members regarding students' progress or issues

Feb 2005 to Lead Preschool Teacher Humpty Dumpty Learning Center
Sept 2004

> Design and implement curriculum for Pre-K age group
> Develop and complete daily notes, monthly newsletters and developmental assessments
> Communicate with parents on a daily basis about child's day and developmental issues

Sept 2002 to Case Afanc^er Community Council
Sept 2003

>  Link clients to community resources and supports
> Meet with clients and discuss concerns and treatment

>  Implement Individual Treatment Plans as outlined by team
>  Participate in weekly team meetings about clients
> Complete paperwork required for agencies and to obtain services for clients and other related paperwork for

treatment of clients i

2001 to (Part time) Wesp/tc Provider Area Agency VI
2004

>  Locate recreational activities out in the community for clients to work on social and emotional skills and facilitate the
successful implementation of these skills

>  Provide Area Agency documentation regarding visits and services offered
> Work and develop skills for success in home and community
> Assist families in supporting the needs of the individual

Additional Experience:
> Crotched Mountain Residential Life Skills Coach

> Head Start Lead Teacher

> Parent Aid for Southern NH Services (wrote reports regarding supervised family visits)
> Member of Family Support Advisory Council of Area Agency (presently Gateways)

Education:

> B.A Psychology Dickinson College
> Para-educator 11 Certification

> Nonviolent Crisis Intervention Training

> Workshops related to special needs and mental health issues ^



Skot Jervis

Objective

Work Experience

Skills

Interests

Education

To secure a job that will allow me to assist people with disabilities with improving
their lives.

Granite State Independent Living
21 Chenell Drive

Concord. NH 03301

Services coordinator January 2002-Present

•  Assisted numerous people with disabilities with overcoming barriers that
restricted their independence. Including, but not limited to, home

modifications, acquiring adaptive equipment, benefits enrollment, vehicle
modifications, and peer support.
t  Organized and/or participated in numerous outreach presentations in
order to inform other agencies about the services Granite State Independent
Living can offer the population they serve.

I consider myself to be quite computer literate; skilled with Microsoft Office and
easily adapt to new database/data entry systems as necessary.

Photography, technology, exercise

Keene State College
229 Main Street

Keene. NH 03431
Dates attended; 1999-2001

Masters in Education

School Guidance Counselor Certification

Keene State College
229 Main Street

Keene. NH 03431

Dates attended: 1995-1999

Bachelors in Elementary Special Education & Psychology

Central High School
207 Lowell Street

Manchester, NH 03104
Dates attended: 1983-1987

References References available upon request



Dawn M, Keddv

HIGHLIGHTS OF QUALIFICATIONS
•  Pioficieut iu providing direct seiVices, employment coaching, and refeirals to consiimei's
•  Compassionate iu couversiug with consumers iu delicate situations
•  Skilled iu explaiuiug detailed information, iustinctious, and regulations
• Adept at iuterviewiug aud comiseliug, especially with regard to detailed procediu'es
•  Efficieut iu examiuatiou, verification, aud submission of specialized data.

•  Proficieut at leaniiug aud utilizing propriefaiy software

RELEVANT EXPERIENCE'

Client Service

•  Provide employment coachiug, counseling, and support
• Assist, consumers in resume writing, mock interviewing, aud job application process
•  Provide, guidance to acquire and submit proper forms, and follow procedures
• Maintain regular contact.to address questions, concerns, or changes
• Match qualified consumers with prospective employers
• Ability to administer personality, career interest, and academic aptitude assessments

Introducing and. Explaining Programs
•  Present.program orientations iu a personalized setting
•  Provide individualized instrnctious for consumer participation
•  Guide and supporl consumers in identifying aud reaching their' employment goals
•  Identify, m^iate, aud resolve conflicts

Outreach and Reporting

•  Engage iu outreach services to coumiimities, employers, and individuals
• Attend employer and partner meetings to market and present programs
•  Submit, detailed aud accmate program reports
• Maintain consumer records and perform routine evaluations
•  Initiate and participate in advisor'y meetings
• Ability to draft aud execute employment contracts

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY

Granite State Independent Living
New Hampshir e Job Corps
Tri-Goimty CAP - Workplace

Success Career Center

Tri-Coimty CAP - Transit
Audroscoggin Valley Hospital
AFLAC Assurance Co. Inc.

Berlin City Chevy

IL Seivices"& Employment Coordinator
Admissions Coimselor

Commimit}' Job Specialist/
On-the-Job Training Developer
Dispatcher
Patient Access Representative
Insurance Agent
Service Advisor/Wananty Rep

03/2017 - Present

03/2016-03/2017

04/2013

12/2012

10/2010

06/2007

09/2006

03/2016

04/2013

02/2012

06/2008

05/2007

EDUCATION



Dawn M. Keddv

Ashford UniversitY

BA Social aud Criminal Justice

CJmlon, lA

2013

WhiteMountaiDS-Coininunitv College.

AS Criminal Justice

AS Compiiter/luformation Technology
AS Automotive Technology

Berlin. NH

2010

2010

2006



Madeline Olio Ruano

Job Objective

A Service Coordinator position with a social service agency that utilizes my excellent organizational and
communication skills, involves advocacy and Community and Consumer Education/Outreach and Identify and

utilize local resources in support of community living for people with disabilities.

Work History

2009 - present IL Service Coordinator - Granite State Independent Living, Concord, NH
- Maintain in outreach activities to members of the general community.

- Provide information and referral.

- Advocacy on behalf of consumers.

• Direct services to people with disabilities.

2007 - 2009 Deaf^Servlce Manager - Granite State Independent Living, Concord, NH
- Oversee the program service.

- Assist the orienting, evaluation and supervise staffs.
- Education to Community and Consumer Outreach.

- Assist in the development, implementation and review of consumers' ILs.

1996 - 2007 Program Director - Northeast Independent Living Program, Inc., Lawrence, MA
- Oversee the program budget and program service.
- Provide peer mentoring and IL training to consumers.

- Provide supervision and training to staff. Intern and Volunteers.

- Plan and implement peer, support and skills training to consumers and community providers.

1994 -1996 Program Director - North Suffolk Mental Health Associates, Chelsea, MA

- Oversee the program services and budgets.

- Develop new policies for the program services.

- Assist in interview, hiring, orientation training, and evaluation system for program.

- Monitor staff schedule/routines. ,
- Meeting with Program and OMR Administration and contracting team members with agencies.

Education

8.S. Sign Language Interpreter, University of New Hampshire at Manchester, Manchester, NH ,

A.S. Medical Technician, Rochester Institute of Technology/NTID, Rochester, NY

Leadership and Training

Training in conflict-resolution skills, HIPPA, Mental Health Overview, Microsoft Lyncs, and professional training.

Fluent in American Sign Language.
VR Deaf & HOH Advisory Committee, UNH-M Sign Language Interpreter Advisory Meeting, NECC Sign Language

Interpreter Advisory Meeting.

References available on request.



Maryanne H.C. (MHC) MacLeod

Recent Work Experience:

Granite State Independent Living, Concord, NH

April 2021—present

Independent Living and Employment Coordinator

Assist individuals with disabilities to achieve their independent living goals, including

developing home access, housing and transportation opportunities.

Assist individuals with disabilities in preparing for, seeking and maintaining employment

through the Ticket-to-Work and Vocational Rehabilitation programs.

Farmsteads of New England, Epping, NH

September 2017~present

Employment and Transition Services Coordinator

Manage Employment Services, including job development, job coach training,

employment database upkeep, employment contacts, consumer documents and similar. Train

both consumers and job coaches on employment search techniques and strategies.

Manage School Transition Services, including supervision of Rehabilitation Assistants,

assisting in the development of lEPs, billing, sales presentations, providing back up for RA's,

transition planning, etc.

Mentor/DSP to individuals with various developmental disabilities to participate in the

community, develop social connections and social skills, develop and enhance marketable work

skills and dispositions. Assist in the development of ISA goals and strategies.

One Sky Futures, Newmarket, NH

August 2008-August 2017

Program Manager: Employment and Educational Services

Manage School Transition Services, Community Participation Services, vendored

Participant Directed and Managed Services, Vocational Rehabilitation and Private Pay services

for up to 30 individuals with disabilities.

Supervise, schedule and manage up to 28 Direct Support Providers/Rehabilitation

Assistants/Job Coaches

Develop and implement Individualized Education Plans, Individualized Plans for

Employment and Individualized Service Plans. Develop and create customized learning

experiences to achieve individuals' goals. Comply with all state CPS (He-M 507) regulations

and requirements for annual inspection.



Provide direct supports, when needed, for individuals served.

Living Innovations Support Services, Greenland, NH
August 2003-July 2008

Program Manager

Manage Day Habilitation, Residential, and School Transition Services programming for
up to 22 individuals with disabilities. Supervise up to 20 support providers.

Implement and assist in the development of customized service plans for students and

adults with disabilities. Provide direct supports, when needed, for individuals served.

Atlantic Culinary Academy (Mclntosh College), Dover, NH

January 2001-July 2003

Chef Instructor/General Education Curriculum Coordinator

Responsible for developing and implementing general education curriculum in

compliance with NEASC and American Culinary Federation certification requirements.
Instructor for: Culinary Math and Culinary Professional Development courses.

Advisor to multiple student organizations. Accuplacer advisor. Mentor.

Education and Training:

Basic Employment Services Certificate

Association of Community Rehabilitation Educators (ACRE), 2008

Master of Adult and Occupational Education

University of New Hampshire, 2000

Graduate Certificate in Adult Education

University of New Hampshire, 2000

Bachelor of Arts in English

University of New Hampshire, 1992

Phi Beta Kappa; Magna Cum Laude

Licensed Educator: Culinary Arts, Restaurant Management (Endorsement 903)

State of New Hampshire Department of Education

Expires June. 2021



ZAHARA NASSALI

Independent Living/Employment Coordinator

Nonprofit Management and Global Leadership 6/22/2020 -cuhkent

Walden University

Direct Support Certificate in Human Services 2018 -2020

Middlesex Community College

Bachelors in Information Technology 2003 -2009

Makerere University

Granite State Independent Living, 21 Chennel St, Concord NH, 03301 02/17/2021 -CURRENT

Independent Living/Employment Services Coordinator

Key Responsibilities

• Provide information and referral services to members of the general community, service providers, community
organizations, employers, family members, and individuals with disabilities.

• Conduct intakes: assess consumer needs; develop Independent Living plans with consumers; provide independent
living services and skill-building.

• Maintain high-quality records of consumer and community contacts through DACS, Doc-Star, and other systems as
requested.

•  Identify and utilize local resources in support of community living for people with disabilities such as referral and
service resources: housing and transportation services; services.

• Evaluation of home, vehicle, and community accessibility needs, facilitate the AMP process by assisting consumers
seeking Title VII. Part B or other AMP funding in accessing comparable benefits, locally and statewide: provide
support, as needed, toward establishing eiigibillty; contact vendors, consult on project design and implementation,
obtain bids, verify project completion.

• Help people with disabilities accomplish their independent living goais and achieve greater levels of self-
determination.

• Participate in outreach presentations and individualized outreach on disability topics for the general community;
including service providers, community organizations, consumer groups, and employers.

• Support and encourage consumer self-advocacy efforts and when necessary and requested, advocate on behalf of
consumers.

• Conduct travel training by educating individuals on how to use the public transportation system in order to access
his/her community. This includes how to read a map/schedule in order to plan a trip and riding the buses with the
trainees until they feel comfortable using the public transportation system alone. Help coordinate other transportation
services as needed.

• Work oneH3n-one with individuals who wish to leave a long-term care facility in order to live independently In the
community.

• Support youth with disabilities as they transition to becoming independent adults.
• Connect people with disabilities with their peers so they can help each other achieve individual and shared community

goals. Assist in providing GSILdC's Peer Support activities for the region in which you work.
• Support individuals who wish to maintain or obtain employment in achieving their goals. Assist in providing

Employment services for the region jn which you work.
• Conduct other duties as assigned that will increase options for persons with disabilities to live independently in the

community.

• Responsible for coordinating program services including Intake, assessment, job-seeking skills training, job
development, placement, and ongoing support.

• Market GSIL employment programs and services to businesses, community agencies, schools, funding sources, and
participants.

• Provide direct services as needed and assigned.
• Providing and maintaining all written reports and documents in a timely fashion.

• Supervise and evaluate assigned staff including coordinating orientation, ongoing training, and keeping them Informed
on all pertinent information.

• Timely input of data into all required data systems (internal and external) completely, consistently, and accurately.

Cooperate for Human Services , 420 Bedford Rd Lexington MA, 02420 02/28/2020 -02/17/2020

Assistant Program Manager

Key Responsibilities

• Supporting the staff help Individuals achieve their ISP goals in accordance to the organlzationi€"s values and DOS



regulations.
• Accompanying individuals to recreational activities and appointments as needed.
• Maintaining required documentation according to DDS and other regulatory standards.
• Assisting and supporting individuals with their choices and helping them nurture relationships with their families,

relatives, and friends.

• Making Schedules and finding coverage in case of call-outs and inevitable circumstances.
• Updating individuals, demographics in case there is a change to their information like doctors, service fees, or social

security.

• Recording their Census Information for proper billing.
'  • Documenting individual daily logs for reference when I complete their monthly progress notes.

• Transcribing their monthly Medical Treatment Records for proper Medication administration according to MAP
policies ad regulations.

• Supporting individuals with their decisions and encouraging them to make healthy choices which enables them to be
better advocates for themselves.

• Updating Financial Transaction Records of individuals for easy management of their funds and updating their service
fees whenever their SSI benefits change.

• Supervising staff and ensuring that the folks we serve are getting the attention required for their activities and
involvement in the community.

• Updating the weekly/monthly schedule and making sure there is coverage should we have a staff shortage.
• Summarizing monthly progress notes for ISP meetings and attending them to set new goals for individuals.
• Updating individuals, demographics in case there is change to their information like doctors, service fees or social

security.

• A- Recording their Census information for proper billing.
• A- Administration of medications to individuals that we support in accordance to MAP policies and Regulations.
• Supporting individuals with their decisions and encouraging them to make healthy choices which enables them to be

better advocates for themselves.

• Assisting individuals with their activities of daily living according to their needs.
• Making appointments with their Health Care Providers and making sure to take them for these appointments promptly

and as needed.

• Documentation of Encounter forms and Medication treatment forms for Doctorfi{''s appointments so that individuals
get the right doctors

Till Inc, 20 East Brook Rd Dedham MA, 02026 12/05/2016 -2019

Direct Support Professional ,

Key Responsibilities

• Assisting individuals with their activities of daily living.
• Collecting data and recording behavioral and physical challenges.
• Administration of medication for individuals that are no self-medicated and completing documentation in accordance

to MAP reguiations.
• Supporting individuals live as independently as possible. Helping individuals accomplish their goals as per the ISP
• Supporting individuals in advocating for themselves. I am the human resource officer in the residence that I work at.
• Help individuals to complete fire drills every month as the fire safety officer for the residence.

Seven Hills Foundation , 81 Hope Ave Worcester MA, 01602 10/12/2016 -2019

Direct Care Professional

Key Responsibilities are the same as Till Inc

Action to Positive Change on People with Disabilities, Kampala Uganda 2009 -2015

Assistant Procurement Team Manager /Volunteer

Key Responsibilities

•  Initiation of contact with private sponsors to donate equipment to the NGO
• Collaboration with procurement manager to acquire and purchase reliable material to manufacture movement

gadgets for children with disabilities using rudimentary methods at the lowest cost.
• Assist the procurement manager with networking and negotiation to find new partners
• Finalizing details of orders and deliveries.

Zed Carpentry Hardware, Kampala Uganda 2011-201S

Managing Director

Key Responslbilites
• Supen/ise and manage overall business operations which includes acquiring legal of legal licenses and signing lease

agreements with landlords.

•  implementation of marketing and sales strategies in order to meet and exceed customers' expectations with minimum
charges.

• effectively and efficiently take stock of all merchandise in an effort to balance supply with demand.
• Handle commercial issues with banks so as to expand business operations in targeted areas.
• Setting up and maintaining business bank accounts and payment processing plus management of imported products

and processing their clearance from the revenue authorities.

Action to Positive Change on People with Disabilities, Kampala Uganda 2000 -2015

Community Outreach Program Volunteer

• Rehabilitation of orphaned and abandoned children back into their respective communities.



Employee Total Salary Salary paid by Contract

AMP Access Specialist - Erin Bassegio

IL Services Coordinator - Dawn Keddy ■

IL Services Coordinator - Hilary Gilbert

IL Services Coordinator - Skot Jervis

IL Services Coordinator - Madeline Olio

IL Services Coordinator - Zahara Nassali

IL Services Coordinator - Maryanne MacLeod

Transportation Manager - Sara O'Dougherty

Transportation Coordinator- Norman Hart

$ 11,000.00

$ 5,510.70

$ 4,100.90

$ 7,866.40

$ 8,467.00

s 4,000.00

$ 4,000.00

$ 7,023.15

$ 7,597.20

TOTAL PART B SALARIES & WAGES S  59,565.35


